

PARISH OF KILDIMO – BARONY OF KENRY

PARISH OF KILDIMO

INDEX

<u> </u>	age
Kildimo Ph.	1
Townlands &c.	
Ardlahan Ashgrove House	2 28
Ballyashea Ballyashea Lough Ballycasey Ballyculhane Ballyculhane Castle ruins Ballynahallee Ballynolan Ballynort House Ballyrune Ballyrune Ballyvareen Blackfort Blind Lough Bolane Bolane Castle ruins	7 3 3 4 3 5 6 3 8 9 9 9 8 10 3 4 3 10 3 10 3 10 3 10 3 10 3 10 3
Carheeny Clooncaura Coolbeg Court Court Bridge or Ferry Bridge Court Castle ruins Cragganacree Cullam Castle ruins Curraheen	11 12 13 14 45 31 15 31 16
Dromore	17
Faha Ferry Bridge or Court Bridge Feereagh Lough	18 45 37
Glennameade	20

INDEX (contd.)

Kildimo Church Glebe Glebe House New Village Old Village C. Chapel Killulta Kilmoreen Knockroe	Page 21 44 19 27 42 41 43 35 22 23
Monanooag	24
River Maigue	40
Tobermurry Tobermurry Holy Well Tonlegee	26 3 6 2 5

Ph. Kildimo

B.S.S.M.

1

Cill Díoma, St. Dimma's Church.

prond. Kildeema.

Kildimo

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- County Table 1819

-- G. Franklin. Perpetual Curate

Kildeemo -- Revd. Mr. Jones, Rector, Ardcanny.

Derived from Cill, a church or a burial place, and Dima, the name of the saint to whom it was dedicated. Authority - Revd. Thomas Shanahan, P.P.

This parish is situated in the East of the Barony of Kenry, and contains 6,182 statute acres.

It is of a rectangular form. Its greatest length from Ardlahan Td. in the N. to Monanooag Td. in the S. is $3\frac{1}{6}$ miles; and its breadth from the junction of the Tds. of Glennameade and Tobermurry with Ballyshonickbane Td. in Kilcornan Ph. in the West to the Td. of Faha in the East is 4 miles.

Townlands

٠.

Ardlahan (contd.)

Ard Leathan, broad height, i.e., a hill having a broad or extensively flat summit.

Ardlahan

-- J. O'D.

-- County Table 1819

-- Revd. Mr. Jones

-- Revd. Thos. Shanahan. P.P.

Ardelaghane

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Ballycullane als) Ardloghane

-- Acts of Settlement &c. 1666-1684

This townland is situated in the N. of the parish. & contains 275 acres.

The property of Sir Ralph Gore, London. Agent, St. George Core, Castleconnell. Let to 16 tenants on a lease of lives; rent from 28s. to 32s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. Tithe per acre 18d. to 2s. Size of farms, from 1 rood to 51 acres. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel plenty. Prevailing Names: Madigan and Rorke. Milmacat Lough is in this td. and contains pike, perch and eel.

Ballycasey

-- B.S.S.M.

3

Baile Ó gCáthasaigh, townland of the O'Caseys.

recté Ballyogasey. 0'D.

Ballycasey

-- J. O'D.

-- G. Franklin, Perl. Cur.
-- Revd. Thos. Shanahan, P.P.
-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

Balliassy

Ballyogahassy

-- Down Survey -- Civil Survey 1654-56.

This name is locally pronounced Ballygasey. J. O'D.

Situated in the E. of the parish, and contains 631 acres.

The property of Lord Charleville, Tullamore. Agent, Mr. Berry, Tullamore. Let to 26 tenants at will; rent from 30s. to 50s. per acre. Size of holdings, from 2 acre to 50 acres. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Purcell and O'Brien. The R. Maigue waters this td., and is supplied with salmon, eel, pike, etc.

Ballyculhaun

-- B.S.S.M.

Baile Uí Caltháin is the local name, and is a corruption of Baile Uí Chathláin, O'Cahalan's town.

Ballyculhane

-- J. O'D.

Ballyculhaun (contd.)

Ballvculhane Ballycullane -- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824 -- Terrier of Kildimo Vicarage

-- Barony Map -- Down Survey

V Ballicalhane

Bally Cullane Ballycullane als) Ardloghane

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

-- Acts of Settlement &c

Situated in the N. of the parish, and contains 383 acres.

The property of Sir Ralph Gore, London. Agent, St. George Gore, Castleconnell. Middleman, Montford Westropp, Esq., Mellon, Fallas Kenry, who sublets to 13 occupying tenants, 7 of whom have leases of 3 lives and 6 at will. Rent per acre from £2 to £4. Size of farms from 2 to 30 acres. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: O'Brien and Carroll. The ruins of Ballyculhane Caste are situated here.

Ballynahallee

-- B.S.S.M.

5

Baile na hAilighe, town of the Aileach or Stone Fort.

Ballynahallee

-- J. O'D.

-- G. Franklin, Perpetual Curate

-- Revd. T. Shanahan, P.P. -- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

Ballynahalee

-- Sown Survey Ballinehally

Ballynehally -- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the W. of the parish, and contains 169 acres.

The property of Richard Hill, Esq., Limerick. Let to 19 tenants at will. Rent per acre from 40s. to 47s. Co. Cess per acre yearly about 3s. Tithe per acre 20d. Size of farms - 1 to 20 acres. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Name: White.

Ballynolan

-- B.S.S.M.

7

Baile Uí Nualláin, O'Nolan's town.

Ballynolan

-- J. O'D.

-- G. Franklin

-- Revd. T. Shanahan, P.P.

Bellionellane

-- Down Survey

Ballyone Nellane -- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the West of the parish, and contains 119 acres.

Ballynolan

-- B.S.S.M.

(contd.)

The property of Edward Morgan, Esq., Cork. John Nocten, Ballynolan. Let to 9 tenants, some with leases of lives, some at will. Rent from £1 2s. 3d. to £1 10s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly from 2s.4d. to 2s.8d. Tithe per acre from 1s.6d. to 2s.6d. Soil light, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Prevailing Names: Farrell and C'Shea. Ballynolan House stands here. It is a rectangular building, 3 stories high, built in 1797 by the Revd. Thos. Westropp. It is at present occupied by the Revd. James O'Rourke.

Ballyasheea

-- B.S.S.M.

Baile Uí Aisiaith, Hassetts town.

Ballyashea

-- J. O'D.

-- Co. Table 1819

-- Revd. Mr. Jones, Rector Ardcanny

-- Barony Map

Ballyashie Ballynehausea Balleasse

-- Revd. T. Shanahan, P.F. -- Civil Survey 1654-56 -- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the West of the parish, and contains

The property of Thomas Hill, Esq., Mount Pleasant, Pallas Kenry. Let to 2 tenants at will; rent, 27s. per acre. Co. Čess per acre 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 18d. to 20d. Size of farms 68 to 90 acres. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats, barley and potatoes. Fuel plenty. Frevailing Names: Sheehy and Ready.

Ballyroon

210 acres.

-- B.S.S.M.

8

Baile Ui Riúin, O'Roone's town.

Ballyrune

-- J. O'D.

-- Co. Table 1819

-- G. Franklin

--- Revd. T. Shanahan, P.P.

Ballyroone -- Terrier of Kildimo Vicarage

-- Revd. Mr. Jones

Balliurne (?)

-- Down Survey

Ballyurrne

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

-- Acts of Settlement &c. Ballerone

Situated in the S. of the parish, and contains 188 acres.

The property of Mr. Thornhill, Jersy. Middleman, Thos. Hill, Mount Pleasant, who sublets to 23 tenents at will. Rent from £2 to £2 5s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre

Ballyroon (contd.)

yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Size of holdings - ½ acre to 20 acres. Soil light and gravelly, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Lynch and Hogan. There is a Female School here containing 20 girls. It was established in 1837. The teacher is paid by the pupils.

Ballyvareen

-- B.S.S.M.

9

Baile Ui Bharaoin, O'Barreen's town.

Ballyvareen

-- J. O'D.

-- G. Franklin

Ballyvarane Ballyvoreen -- Barony Map
-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824
-- Revd. T. Shanahan, P.P.

Situated in the centre of the parish, and contains 215 acres.

The property of Montford Westropp, Esq., Mellon, Pallas Kenry. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 18d. to 20d. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. There are 2 schools here, one established in 1839, date of the other unknown. They contain 160 boys and 105 girls, 3 of whom are Protestants, the remainder R. Catholics. The teacher is paid by the pupils. New Eildimo Village is situated here.

<u>Bolaan</u>

-- B.S.S.M.

10

Beolán, this is a man's name. O'D.

Bolane

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Revd. Mr. Jones

-- Revd. T. Shanahan, P.P.

Boolane Beolane -- Down Survey

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the N. of the parish, and contains 282 acres.

The property of Lord Charleville, Tullamore. Let to 4 tenants on a lease of lives and years. Rent per acre from 25s. to 38s. Co. Cess yearly per acre 2s. to 3s. Tithe about 20d. per acre. Size of farms - 5 to 75 acres. Soil light and gravelly, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel plenty. Prevailing Names: Hill and O'Brien. The ruins of Bolane Castle are situated here.

-- B.S.S.M. 11 Carheeny Cairthinidhe. little stone forts. Carheeny -- J. O'D. -- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824 -- County Table 1819 -- G. Franklin, P. Curate -- Barony Map Cahireeny -- Terrier of Kildimo Vicarage -- Revd. Mr. Jones -- Revd. Thos. Shanahan, P.P. Carheenee Cahir two-ninths of) -- Down Survey Dromore ?

Situated in the N. of the parish, and contains 228 acres.

The property of Sir Ralph Gore, London. Agent, St. George Gore, Castleconnell. Let to 15 tenants, 12 at will and 3 on a lease of lives. Rent per acre 35s. to 50s. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.8d. Tithe per acre 3s. to 4s. Size of farms, from ½ acre to 35 acres. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, cats and potatoes. Fuel plenty. Prevailing Names: O'Brien and Maddigan. The R. Maigue waters this townland.

Clooncaura

-- B.S.S.M.

12

Cluain Cártha, lawn of the rock.

Clooncaura — J. O'D.

-- Revd. T. Shanahan, P.P.

-- Presentment Book 1839

Cloun Caura -- C. Franklin, P. Curate

Situated in the N. of the parish, and contains 51 acres.

The property of the Barl of Charleville, Tullamore. Let to 5 tenants at will; rent 18s. 4dd. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly from 2s. to 2s.4d. Tithe from 2s. to 5s.6d. per acre. Size of farms - from 1 to 7 acres. Soil loamy, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel plenty. Frevailing Names: McMahon and Maddigan.

Coolbeg.

-- B.S.S.M.

13

Cúil Bheag, little corner or angle.

Coolbeg -- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. of Ireland 1824

٠.,

-- Revd. T. Shanahan, P.P. -- Presentment Book 1839

Coolbeg (contd.)

Situated in the N. of the parish, and contains 182 acres.

The property of Sir Ralph Gore, London. Middleman, Montford Westropp, Mellon, Pallas Kenry, who sublets to 9 tenants at will. Rent per acre from 18s. to 30s. Co. Cess yearly per acre from 2s. to 2s.4d. Tithe per acre from 2s. to 3s.6d. Size of farms from ½ acre to 35 acres. Soil light; usual crops - wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Barret and McMahon. A portion of Kildimo Village is situated in this td.

Court

-- B.S.S.M.

14

Cúirt, a manor house.

Court

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Revd. Mr. Jones

-- Barony Map -- Down Survey

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Courte

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the E. of the parish, and contains 697 acres.

The property of Lord Limerick, Limerick. Agent, Danl. Barrington, Esq., Limerick. Let to 20 tenants; rent, 27s. to 65s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s. to 2s.8d. Tithe per acre 18d. to 20d. Size of farms - ½ acre to 174 acres. Soil rich leamy, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel plenty. Frevailing Names: McMahon. The R. Maigue waters this td. The ruins of a court, formerly the residence of the Hasting family, stand in this td.

Craggaunacree

-- B.S.S.M.

15

Creagán na Groidhe, little crag of the cattle.

Oragganacree Oraganacree

-- J. O'D.

-- Terrier of Kildimo Vicarage

-- Revd. Mr. Jones

Cregaunacree -- Revd. Thos. Shanahan, P.P.

Cregan Irrie -- Down Survey

Cragane Icry -- Civil Survey 1654-56 Cregancree -- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the W. of the parish, and contains 129 acres.

The property of Edwd. B. Thornhill, Esq., Mallow. Agent, Charles Sugrue, Esq., Cork. Middleman, Thos. Hill, Esq., Mount Pleasant, Pallas Kenry, who sublets to 6 tenants at will. Rent per acre from 23s. to 30s. Co. Cess per acre yearly from 2s.2d. to 2s.6d. Tithe per agre from 18d. to 3s.6d. Sitze of farms from 6 to 27 acres. Soil light,

Craggaunacree (contd.)

producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Fitzgerald. There is a school here, containing 30 boys and 20 girls, all Catholics. Dromore Lough waters this td., and is supplied with pike, trout and eel. White Forge Chapel, an old thatched building, is situated here.

Dromore

-- B.S.S.M.

17

Drom Mór, great ridge.

Dromore

-- J. O'D.

-- 2ur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- County Table 1819

-- G. Franklin, P. Curate

-- Barony Map
-- Down Survey

Drommore

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

A high hill, slanting in every directing stands here, which probably gave rise to the name.

Situated in the N. of the parish, and contains 48 acres.

The property of Lord Limerick. This td. is all planted with ash, oak, larch and fir. There is a neat slated lodge, built in 1823 for Lord Limerick's accommodation when shooting. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s. to 2s.8d. Tithe per acre 18d. to 2s. Dromore Lough waters this td., and is supplied with pike, perch and eel.

Faha

-- B.S.S.M.

18

Faithche, a green field; a fair green; platea.

Made Pahy in Ulster and Connaught.

Faha

-- J. O'D.

-- G. Franklin

-- Revá. T. Shanahan, P.P.

-- Down Survey

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the N. of the parish, and contains 228 acres.

The property of the Revd. Wm. Waller, Castletown, Pallas Kenry. Middleman, Montford Westropp, Esq., who sublets to 6 tenants on a lease of lives. Rent from 50s. to £3 per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s. to 3s. Tithe per acre 1s.6d. to 2s. 2d. Size of farms, from 2½ to 33 acres. Soil heavy clay, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Slattery and Barret. The River Maigue waters this townland.

Glebe of Kildimo

-- B.S.S.M.

19

Cill Dioma, prond. Kildeema.

Glebe

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824 -- County Table 1819

-- Revd. G. Franklin Glebe of Kildimo

-- Revd. T. Shanahan, P.P.

Situated in the south of the parish.

The property of the Revd. George Franklin, the Incumbent. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.fd. to 3s. Soil loam, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. The Glebe House is 2 story high, with a good set of offices and a garden. There is a School House here, built in 1809; but there is no teacher at present.

Glennamead

-- B.S.S.M.

20

Gleann na Miadhach, valley of the Meade family.

Glennameade

-- J. O'D.

Glennamead

-- Revd. T. Shanahan, P.P. -- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

Glaunamede

-- County Table 1819

Glenmead

-- Revd. George Franklin

Situated in the west part of the parish, and contains 483 acres.

The property of H. Westropp, Esc., Richmond Villa, Blackrock, Cork. Agent, P. Hayes, Esq., Abbeyfeale. Let to 16 tenants at will. Rent from 20s. to 30s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 18d. to 2s.2d. Size of farms - 4 to 34 acres. Soil light and gravelly, producing wheat, oats & potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Mead and McNamara. A small ruin of a Kill or Church, called Kilslatha, is situated in this td.

Kildimo

-- B.S.S.M.

21

Cill Dioma, St. Dimma's Church.

See name of parish.

Situated in the south of the parish, and contains 341 acres.

The property of Edwd. B. Thornhill, Jersey. Agent, Chas. Sugrue, Esq., Cork. Let to 30 tenants at will. Rent per acre from 18s. to £3. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 12d. to 18d. Size of farms, from \frac{1}{2} acre to 200 acres. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Neiland & Carroll. There is a school here, containing 60 boys and 30

Kildimo (contd.)

girls, all Catholics. The teacher is paid by the pupils. Old Kildimo Village is situated here.

Kilmoreen

-- B.S.S.M.

22

Cill Muirrin, Murrin's Church.

Kilmoreen

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Revd. G. Franklin -- Presentment Book

Kilmoreene

-- Revd. Mr. Jones

-- Terrier of Kildimo Vicarage

Killmorrie Killmorine -- Down Survey Map

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the south of the parish, and contains 382 acres.

The property of Edwd. B. Thornhill of Jersey. Let to 14 tenants at will. Rent from £1 to £1 11s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly from 2s.2d. to 2s.6d. Tithe per acre from 18d. to 3s.6d. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Fitzgerald and McMahon.

Knockrooa

-- B.S.S.M.

23

Cnoc Ruadh, red hill.

Knockroe

-- J. O'D.

Enockroe als)

-- Revd G. Franklin

Knockrooa knockrue

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- County Table 1819

-- Barony Map

Knockrow

-- Revd. T. Shanahan, P.P.

Situated in the south of the parish, and contains 174 acres. The property of Sir Ralph Gore, London. Middleman, Montford Westropp, Esq., Mellon, Pallas Kenry. Let to 6 tenants, some on leases of lives and some at will. Rent per acre from £1 13s. to £2. Co. Cess per acre yearly from 2s.2d. to 2s.10d. Tithe per acre from 1s.6d. to 3s.6d. Soil light, producing wheat, cats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Carroll and McMahon.

Moneenogue

-- B.S.S.M.

24

Moin na Nuag, bog of the vags (? bull rushes?).

Monanooag

-- J. O'D.

-- Barony Map

Monanogue

-- Revd. T. Shanahan, P.P.

Moneenogue (contd.)

Situated in the S. of the parish, and contains 105 acres.

The property of Edwd. B. Thornhill, Esq., Mallow. Let to 9 tenants at will. Rent per acre from 17s. to 30s. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.2d. to 3s.6d. Tithe per acre 18d. to 3s.6d. Soil light, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Size of farms - from 1 to 10 acres. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Byrnes, Joyce and Carroll.

Thoanleghee

-- B.S.S.M.

2**5**

Toin le Gaoith, hill exposed to the wind.

Tonlegee

-- J. O'D.

-- Presentment Book 1839

Thonlegee

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824 -- Revd. T. Shanahan, P.P.

Tonelegee -- Re

-- Revd. G. Franklin

Tonelegeigh

-- Barony Map
-- Down Survey

Toncleigh

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the N. of the parish, and contains 98 acres.

The property of the Earl of Charleville. Let to 1 tenant at will. Rent per acre 22s. Co. Cess per acre yearly from 2s. to 2s.4d. Tithe per acre from 2s. to 3s.6d. Soil argillaceous; usual crops. Size of farms - 39 acres. Fuel plenty. Dromore Lake waters this townland.

Tubbermurry

-- B.S.S.M.

26

Tobar Muire, well of the Virgin Mary.

Tobermurry

-- J. C'D.

Tubbermurry

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- County Table 1819 -- Revd. G. Franklin

-- Barony Map

Situated in the W. part of the parish, and contains 230 acres.

The property of Lord Charleville, Tullamore. Middleman John Wilson, a ward in Chancery, who lets to 29 tenants, some on a lease of lives and years and some at will. Rent from 26s. to 42s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. Tithe 18d. to 2s. per acre. Soil gravelly, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce, Prevailing Names - Walsh and Sheehan. There is a school here, containing 36 boys, 31 Protestant, 5 Catholic. It is supported by the Bishop and Revd. Wm. Waller. Tobermurry Holy Well is situated here. There are stations occasionally performed at it by the peasantry.

Miscellaneous Features

Glebe House of Kildimo -- Revd. G. Franklin

27

See parish name. J. O'D.

Situated in the north of the parish.

This house is 2 stories high and was built in the year 1803. It is the residence of the Revd. George Franklin.

Ashgrove House

-- Wm. Fosberry. Esc.

28

Situated in the east of Ballycasey Td.

A comfortable farm house with an orchard and some planting annexed.

Black Fort

- Local

29

Situated on the north boundary of Ballynahallee Td. This fort is about 2½ chains in diameter.

Ballynort House

-- John Farrell, Ballynort

30

A rectangular building 3 stories high, built by the Revd. Thos. Westropp. It is at present occupied by the Revd. James O'Rourke.

Ballyculhane Castle ruins -- Local

31

See name of townland. J. O'D.

Situated in Ballyculhane Td.

The ruins of this castle stand in a rectangular space of about 132 ft. long and 120 ft. broad, inclosed by a wall of about 30 ft. high. Fragments of the castle walls are standing, and 3 chimneys remain, which are about 50 ft. high. At each angle of the courtyard and outside stands a square tower, 2 stories high and arched overhead. The appartments in the towers are about 7 ft. square.

Court Castle ruins

-- Local

32

See name of townland. J. O'D.

Situated in the east of Court Td., on the N. of the road leading from the Ferry Bridge to Old Kildimo Village.

It is a rectangular building, 28 ft. long and 22 ft. broad. The north wall is tolerably perfect, and a fragment of the east wall remains; the remainder is razed to the ground. The lower story was arched and the upper two were

Court Castle ruins (contd.)

lofted, which is evident by hewn stones jutting out and holes placed at regular distances in the north wall. The ascent to the top was by a spiral staircase, which still remains.

Cullam Castle ruins

-- Local

33

Cullom, qd. Coll Lom, bere hazel - (if it be not this, the name is English.) J. O'D.

Cullam Castle ruins -- J. O'D.
Cullum Castle ruins -- Barony Map

Situated in Court Id., within 2 chains of the west bank of the R. Maigue.

This old castle is about 32 feet square, and is at present called the Pigeon House by the Inhabitants. Its height may be about 24 ft. at present; but it appears to have formerly been higher. Two chains to the west of it stand the ruins of Court House, which was inhabited by the Hasting Family.

Bolaan Castle ruin

-- John Hayes, a tenant

34

See name of townland. O'D.

Situated in Bolane Td.

This castle is built upon a limestone rock, and is a rectangular building, 30 ft. long and 20 ft. broad. The south wall is perfect. The north wall is entirely down, and only fragments of the other walls remain. The different stories of this castle were arched. Its height may be about 80 feet.

Killoletha Church ruins

-- Michl. Mead, Glenamead.

Cill Ultach. church of the Ultonians.

Killulta

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the N.E. portion of Glennamead Id.

These ruins are 20 ft. long by 14 ft. broad on the outside, and 15 ft. long by 9 ft. broad inside. The walls are tolerably perfect. There is a window on the East about 15 inches high and 8 inches broad on the outside, widening inside to a height of 4 ft. and a breadth of 2 ft. The height of the side-walls is about 9 ft. According to the historian Ferrar, this church was founded by the pious Dioma.

Tubbermurry Holy Well

-- Danl. Gronan, Tobermurry 36

Tobar Muire, the Virgin Mary's Well.

Tobermurry &c.

-- J. O'D.

Situated in a marsh in the south of Tobermurry Td.

Stations are performed here occasionally.

Phereagh Lough

-- Local

37

Fiodh Riach, grey wood.

Feereagh

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the south of Glennamesd Td.

·On the north of the new line of road connecting Askeaton and Limerick. This is as much a marsh as a lough, and is. called the Blind Lough occasionally. It contains about 5% statute acres.

Blind Lough

-- Local -- J. O'D.

38

Situated in the S. of Glennamead Td., on the parish boundary between Kildimo and Kilcornan.

This is as much a marsh as a lough. It contains about 8 statute acres.

Lilbreedy Lough

-- Local

39

Ballashea Lough

-- Barony Map.

See Parish of Rilcornan for description.

River Maigue

-- B.S.S.M.

40

An Mháig, also Abhainn Máighe, river of the plain.

River Maigue

-- J. O'D.

River Maige

-- Co. Table 1819

River Mage River Maig

-- Down Survey -- Civil Survey 1654-56

River Mague

-- Barony Map

Situated on the east boundary of the Ph. of Kildimo, separating it from the Fh. of Kilkeedy.

Kildimo New Village

-- Local

41

See name of parish. J. O'D.

Situated in the west of Ballyvareen Td.

This village contains 32 houses, a police station with 1 sergeant and 4 subconstables, 4 publicans, 1 baker, a smith, 2 shoemakers and 2 carpenters.

Kildimo Old Village

-- John Fitzgerald

42

Situated partly in Lildimo Td., and partly in Ballyrune Td.

This village contains 21 houses, 1 publican, 4 hucksters, 1 smith, 4 shoemakers, 1 weaver, 1 carpenter, and 3 taylors. There is a R. C. Chapel here, and a school containing 60 boys and 30 girls, all R. Cs.

<u>Kildimo R. C. Chapel</u> -- John Fitzgerald, Kildimo 43 -- J. O'D.

Situated in Kildimo Td.

This chapel was repaired and roofed in 1836. It can accomodate 500 persons.

Kildimo Church -- Local -- J. O'D.

Situated in the Glebe of Kildimo.

A small commodious church, capable of accomodating about 100 persons. It lies about 1 furlong to the S. of the Glebe House. "The ancient church of this parish was founded by the pious Dima". Ferrar's History of Limerick.

Ferrybridge -- Sketch Map

Court Bridge -- Barony Map

Situated on the boundary between the parishes of Kildimo and Kilkeedy.

This bridge crosses the River Maigue at the new line of road connecting Limerick and Askeaton, between the townlands of Cloghatacka and Court. It is a draw-bridge, and boats passing through it pay 3s. toll.

End of the Ph. of Kildimo